

Public Agenda Pack



Notice of Meeting of

LOCAL COMMUNITY NETWORK - VALE OF FROME

Thursday, 7 December 2023 at 7.00 pm

**Wanstrow Village Hall, Frome Road, Wanstrow,
BA4 4SX**

To: The members of the Local Community Network - Vale of Frome

Chair: Frome Town Councillor Max Wide

Councillor Adam Boyden	Councillor Barry Clarke	Councillor Shane Collins
Councillor Dawn Denton	Councillor Martin Dimery	Councillor Michael Dunk
Councillor Philip Ham	Councillor Helen Kay	Councillor Claire Sully
Councillor Alex Wiltshire	Beckington	Berkley
Buckland Dinham	Great Elm	Frome Town Council
Hemington, Hardington, Foxcote	Lullington	Mells
Norton St Philip	Nunney	Rode
Selwood	Tellisford	Trudoxhill
Upton Noble	Wanstrow	Whatley
Witham Friary		

For further information about the meeting, including how to join the meeting virtually, please contact LCN Team lcn@somerset.gov.uk.

All members of the public are welcome to attend our meetings and ask questions or make a statement **by giving advance notice** in writing or by e-mail to the Monitoring

Officer at email: democraticserviceteam@somerset.gov.uk by **5pm on Friday, 1 December 2023.**

This meeting will be open to the public and press, subject to the passing of any resolution under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A: Access to Information.

The meeting will be webcast and an audio recording made.

Issued by the Monitoring Officer on Wednesday, 22 November 2023

AGENDA

**Local Community Network - Vale of Frome - 7.00 pm Thursday, 7 December
2023**

Core Membership 5 - 6

Click here to join the online meeting 7 - 8

1 Apologies for Absence

To receive any apologies for absence.

2 Welcome to Wanstrow

3 Declarations of Interest

To receive and note any declarations of interests in respect of any matters included on the agenda for consideration at this meeting.

(The other registrable interests of Councillors of Somerset Council, arising from membership of City, Town or Parish Councils and other Local Authorities will automatically be recorded in the minutes: [City, Town & Parish Twin Hatters - Somerset Councillors 2023](#))

4 Notes from the Previous Meeting (Pages 9 - 18)

To approve the notes from the previous meeting.

5 Actions since the last meeting

6 Somerset Council Financial Update

7 Public Questions (not covered on the agenda)

8 Road Safety and Highways presentation, discussion and ways forward

9 Actions from this meeting

10 Dates of future meetings

This page is intentionally left blank

Core Membership

Unitary Councillors:

Councillor Adam Boyden
Councillor Barry Clarke
Councillor Shane Collins
Councillor Dawn Denton
Councillor Martin Dimery
Councillor Michael Dunk
Councillor Philip Ham
Councillor Helen Kay
Councillor Claire Sully
Councillor Alex Wiltshire

City, Town and Parish Councils (one voting member from each):

Beckington
Berkley
Buckland Dinham
Great Elm
Frome
Hemington
Lullington
Mells
Norton St. Philip
Nunney
Rode
Selwood
Tellisford
Trudoxhill
Upton Noble
Wanstrow
Whatley
Witham Friary

Other Stakeholders (one voting member from each):

Avon and Somerset Police
NHS
Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue
Education
Spark Somerset
Society Local Council Clerks

Somerset Association Local Councils
Somerset Activity Sports Partnership
Community Council for Somerset
Citizens Advice
Department of Work and Pensions
Somerset Rivers Authority
Somerset Local Nature Partnership
Business Chamber
Frome Learning Partnership
Mind in Somerset
PCN Lead Frome Medical Practice
YMCA
Young Somerset
Trinity Church

We'd love to see you in person, but if you can't make it this time, we're trialling a hybrid set-up, so please use this MS Teams Link Join on your computer, mobile app or room device

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device

[Click here to join the meeting](#)

Meeting ID: 367 872 371 041

Passcode: wTf43x

[Download Teams](#) | [Join on the web](#)

Or call in (audio only)

[+44 1823 772277,,597807873#](#) United Kingdom, Taunton

Phone Conference ID: 597 807 873#

[Find a local number](#) | [Reset PIN](#)



This page is intentionally left blank

Local Community Network Meeting Notes

Meeting Title: Local Community Network - Vale of Frome

Date: Thursday, 5 October 2023

Time: 7.00 pm - 8.40 pm

Location: Buckland Dinham Village Hall, High Street, Buckland Dinham, Frome, BA11 2QD

Chaired by: Cllr Max Ride – Frome Town Council

LCN core membership attendance:

Name:	Representing
Adam Boyden	Somerset Council
Barry Clarke	Somerset Council
Dawn Denton	Somerset Council
Andrew Knight	Berkley Parish Council
Sarah Barnett	Buckland Dinham Parish Council
Max Ride	Frome Town Council
Ian Hasell	Norton St Philip Parish Council
Diana Francis	Trudoxhill Parish Council
Michael Gay	Wanstrow Parish Council

Officer attendance:

Name:	Representing
--------------	---------------------

Kate Hellard

LCN Development Lead

Adrian Moore

Locality Officer

Other attendees:

Name:

Representing

John Reckless

Buckland Dinham Parish Council

Anita Collier

Frome Town Council

Val Fox

Norton St Philip Parish Council

Susan Hicks

Buckland Dinham Parish Council

Patrick Macleay

Community Speedwatch – Buckland Dinham

Rohan Masson-Taylor

Trudoxhill Parish Council

Lisa Merryweather

Frome Town Council

Catriona Mufett

Norton St Parish Council

Liz Nalliwell

Governor, Berkley School

Janice Sledge

Governor, Trinity School

Debbie Taylor

Health Watch

Dr Rob Taylor

PCN Lead Frome Medical Practice

Alexia Tibbs

Flowers for Good

Caroline Toll

Member of the public

Jenny Waller

Member of the public

Simon Clegg

Nunney Parish Council

Virtual attendees:

Name:	Representing
Helen	Member of the public
Carole Smith	Member of the public
Emma Tavakoli	Somerset Skills and Learning
Paul White	Nunney Parish Council
Emma Wilkes	Oakfield Academy
Jo Wren	Avon and Somerset Police
Emily Window	Project and Change Assistant
Steph Gold	Democratic Services Officer

Summary of discussion:

Agenda Summary of key points of discussion and outcome: item:

Item 11: **Apologies for Absence**

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Martin Dimery, Claire Sully, Alex Wiltshire and Helen Kay of Somerset Council, Cllr Sally Foster Mells Parish Council and Cllr Karen Punter Nunney Parish Council.

Item 12: **Declarations of Interest**

There were no declarations of interest received.

Item 13: **Notes from the Previous Meeting**

The notes of the previous meeting held on 27th July 2023 were approved as a correct record.

Item 14: **Welcome from Buckland Dinham Parish Council**

The Chair, Cllr Max Wide of Frome Town Council welcomed all to the Local Community Network Frome meeting and asked all those present in person and online to follow the slides on screen

throughout the meeting.

The full set of slides used during meeting can be viewed here:

[LCN presentation](#)
[5.10.23 - Modern Council \(somerset.gov.uk\)](#)

The Chair introduced Cllr John Reckless, Chair of Buckland Dinham Parish Council who welcomed all those in attendance to the village of Buckland Dinham. He advised that; like many other towns and villages in the LCN Frome area, there are some issues and concerns in Buckland Dinham i.e speeding, highways, large scale house building and the impact of this on rural infrastructure, lack of affordable housing, particularly for those with a local connection.

Item 15: **Public Question Time**

Two questions were received from a member of the public in attendance as follows:

Name: Debbie Rigby

Question 1: Is there is a GP surgery in Buckland Dinham?

Response: No there is not a GP surgery, most people look towards Frome and Beckington for health services.

Question 2: Does this LCN have its own budget?

Response: The Chair advised that the LCN does not have its own budget, but it can certainly influence and persuade budget holders. The LCN Development Lead added that LCN pilots have shown that LCN's are able to deliver change at a local level by drawing down grants and funding from various sources.

Item 16: **LCN Governance: The Name of this LCN**

The Chair advised that following feedback from a number of members, he felt that this Local Community Network (LCN) should be renamed to reflect the fact that the LCN boundary is wider than Frome alone. He asked all members to offer their suggestions, and the following were received: -

- Frome & Mendip East
- Quarry Hills and Frome
- Frome Rural
- Frome and East Somerset
- Frome and Selwood Forrest
- Vale of Frome

After a brief discussion led by the Chair, it was concluded that the Local Community Network - Frome would be renamed Local Community Network - Vale of Frome.

Item 17: **Update on process for identifying themes for the Local Plan**

The Chair advised that the LCN steering group had begun work on a survey that will be issued to all town and parish councils, to identify common issues and themes for future LCN meetings. He added that by engaging with parishes in this way, the work of this LCN would be reactive to the needs of the LCN Vale of Frome area as a collective.

The following comments and questions were received from members: -

- Is this LCN beholden to Somerset Council, and can the NHS influence this work as well?
- It was felt that members of the LCN should review a draft survey before it is sent out to all town and parish councils.
- How are we going to prioritise the key issues for this LCN, and is there an opportunity for the establishment of smaller working groups to be made up of representatives from the parishes that have the same issues?
- What is the LCN steering group? - The Chair advised that the LCN Vale of Frome steering group consists of a small

group of LCN core members and Somerset Council officers who meet to discuss agenda setting for the LCN meetings, and that these meetings are open to all. Anyone who wishes to be involved in agenda setting for the LCN should email the Chair or Kate Hellard.

The Chair advised that the outcomes of the survey would be brought to this LCN at the next meeting in December 2023.

Item 18: **Introduction to the data available**

The Chair invited Kate Hellard, LCN Development Lead to give members a brief overview of the LCN Vale of Frome data set (slide number 7), explaining some of the key findings and the complexities and constraints surrounding the data that is currently available. The LCN Development Lead asked the LCN to think about what data they would like to see, adding that there was much more work to do to build a bigger picture of the LCN Vale of Frome's strengths and weaknesses, opportunities and challenges.

Item 19: **Preparation for a discussion on Road Safety across the LCN**

The Chair advised members that there would be an agenda item regarding road safety at the next LCN Vale of Frome meeting. To this end he asked members to work in small groups to recommend any key issues or aspects of road safety that they would like to see included under the item, and to record these on the flip chart paper provided.

The following recommendations were recorded by members: -

- Bypass – speed, particularly at the Asda Junction.
- Safer Streets
- Speeding and appropriate speed limits not being enforced/applied
- Improved cycleways
- Prevalence of fatal accidents in the Frome area
- Visibility on roads – parking and hedges

- Illegal numberplates
- More accident and speeding data for Frome and surrounding areas (including near- miss data) Some of the current data is conflicting.
- Heavy HGV traffic on rural routes
- Fly tipping
- Avon and Somerset Police and Somerset Highways to be invited to the meeting
- Winter readiness – gritting
- Flooding on roads

The Chair thanked everyone for their contributions and advised that these would be used to plan the Road Safety agenda item coming to the next meeting in December 2023.

Item 20: **Update from Somerset Council on Education in the Frome Area and preparation for a discussion**

The Chair welcomed Richard Selwyn, Head of Education Places at Somerset Council to give an update to the LCN concerning current challenges and potential opportunities for reform of the education system in the Frome area (slides 8-16). The Head of Education Places advised that a survey of all headteachers had taken place, and that this had identified a need to explore options for a two-tiered education system in Frome. He added that there would be more engagement with headteachers to talk about individual challenges and opportunities for improvement.

The Chair thanked the officer and referred to slide number 16, asking the LCN to consider three fundamental questions: -

1. How do we influence the scope of this work to encompass the poor educational outcomes that Frome has?

2. Given the fracturing of the Frome system, with schools increasingly belonging to diverse MAT's, how do we ensure that the system works for the area.
3. How do we meaningfully involve the people of the area in the debate?

The Chair invited comments and questions from the LCN and the following points were discussed: -

- One member felt that schools are becoming more businesslike, and therefore are not as familiar with the educational needs of the communities in which they serve, adding that surveying school leaders (headteachers) may not be the most appropriate method of engagement. The member felt that it would be useful to engage with those families who have chosen not to be educated in Frome.
- The pro's and con's of a 2 tier and 3 tier education system.

The Chair asked members of the LCN Vale of Frome to consider forming an 'Education in Frome' sub-group to represent the LCN Vale of Frome in further discussions with Somerset Council and other stakeholders, advising that anyone who would like to volunteer to sit on this sub-group should email himself or Kate Hellard directly.

Item 21: **Dates for the next meeting**

The Chair advised that the provisional future meeting dates are:
-

Thursday 7th December (venue to be confirmed)

Thursday 8th February (venue to be confirmed)

The LCN team have worked hard to avoid diary clashes but

please contact them on LCN@somerset.gov.uk if there are any issues. The team would also like information on suitable alternative venues within the Vale of Frome area.

Contact officer for meeting: LCN Team lcns@somerset.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank